Select Board Meeting
Monday, October 16", 2023, 7:00 p.m.
Nowak Room, Town Offices
10 Front Street, Exeter NH 03833

Virtual Meetings can be watched on Ch 22 or Ch 98 and YouTube.

To access the meeting, click this link: https://us02web.zoom.us/|/89853175539

To access the meeting via telephone, call: +1 646 558 8656 and enter the Webinar ID: 898 5317 5539
Please join the meeting with your full name if you want to speak.
Use the "Raise Hand" button to alert the chair you wish to speak. On the phone, press *9.

More instructions for how to access the meeting can be found here:
https://www.exeternh.gov/townmanager/virtual-town-meetings

Contact us at extvg@exeternh.gov or 603-418-6425 with any technical issues.

AGENDA

Call Meeting to Order
Public Comment
Proclamations/Recognitions
Approval of Minutes

a. Regular Meeting: October 2"9, 2023
5. Appointments

pPOMNE

a. None
6. Resignations
a. None

7. Discussion/Action Items
a. Water/Sewer Rates Hearing
b. Request for 15 Minute Parking Limit (amendment to 103.7 of Town
Ordinances Parking Regulations)
c. MRI Revaluation Contract
d. Riverwoods Tax Agreements
e. Committees Discussion
8. Regular Business
a. Tax Abatements, Veterans Credits & Exemptions
b. Permits & Approvals
c. Town Manager’s Report
d. Select Board Committee Reports
e. Correspondence
9. Review Board Calendar
10. Non-Public Session
11. Adjournment




Niko Papakonstantis, Chair
Select Board

Posted: 10/13/23 Town Office, Town Website

Persons may request an accommodation for a disabling condition in order to attend
this meeting. It is asked that such requests be made with 72 hours notice.

AGENDA SUBJECT TO CHANGE







Select Board Meeting
Monday October 2, 2023
7PM
Nowak Room, Town Offices
Draft Minutes

1. Call Meeting to Order
Members present: Chair Niko Papakonstantis, Vice-Chair Molly Cowan, Clerk Julie Gilman, Dan
Chartrand, Nancy Belanger, Finance Director Corey Stevens, and Interim Public Works Director
Paul Vlasich were present at this meeting. The meeting was called to order by Mr.
Papakonstantis at 7:04 PM.

2. Public Comment
a. There was no public comment at this time.

3. Proclamations/Recognitions _
a. There were no proclamations/recognitions at this time.

4. Approval of Minutes
a. Regular Meeting: September 25, 2023
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to approve the Select Board regular meeting minutes of
September 25, 2023 as presented. Ms. Cowan seconded. The motion passed 5-0.

5. Appointments and Resignations
MOTION: Ms. Gilman moved to accept the resignation of Chris Zigmont from the
Communications Advisory Committee. Ms. Belanger seconded. The motion passed 5-0.

6. Discussion/Action ltems
a. PEA Update

Phillips Exeter Academy.President Bill Rawson was present to give an
update on the academy. PEA History Teacher Bill Jordan also brought his class
in American Politics and Public Policy to the meeting, and the Board answered
questions that the students had submitted.

Mr. Papakonstantis read.the first student question: Are there any plans to
address traffic flow downtown to improve pedestrian safety? Ms. Belanger said
there will be an open house on pedestrian safety Wednesday at Town Hall with
Stantec, which is conducting the study on parking downtown. Another student
asked if there have been any accidents there. Ms. Cowan said there are other
intersections that are more dangerous, but if there are complaints or incidents it's
helpful to know about them. Mr. Chartrand said he has a long-term dream of
moving the bandstand out of the intersection and connecting it to the Town Hall
with a small lawn to address pedestrian issues. Mr. Vlasich said the bandstand
intersection was looked at for improvements a few years ago. Most accidents are
caused by those who park near the bandstand and back out, so we eliminate



parking right there. Ms. Gilman said the Board talked years ago about how to
make the bandstand safer, and proposed making it a roundabout. We even
staked it out, and she thought taking a left was much easier, but people said it
didn’t work. A student aski;d if the study is only on parking. Ms. Belanger said no,
it looks at parking, pedestrian issues, and traffic flow. Another student asked if
the study looked at traffic only during the day, and Ms. Belanger said no, they
looked throughout the day and at night.

Mr. Papakonstantis read the next student question: Have you observed
polarization in the local govérnment like the polarization on the national level?
Mr. Chartrand and Ms. Belanger said no, it's not as bad on the local level. Ms.
Cowan said she disagrees, although it's gotten better since Covid. Mr.
Papakonstantis said it's better now, but'Exater was the first town in New
Hampshire to have a mask mandate - only one city was before us - and it was
contentious. Now he doesn't think we have that sense of polarization. Mr.
Chartrand said that in the 2022 election, residents voted to reject those officials
who were the most divisive. Ms. Gilman spoke about her experiences with Covid
measures at the State levél.

Mr. Papakonstantis read the next student question: Is there anything on
the town warrant that's noteworthy? Mr. Papakonstantis mentioned the Police
Station and Fire Substation. There was low voter turnout last year due to weather
and it only lost by a few votes. Mr. Chartrand mentioned Water/Sewer
improvements. Mr. Papakonstantis said it's important to pass the budget, which
allows the town to operate. A student asked about the best way to inform voters
about issues like the Safety Complex, rather than just showing them the price.
Ms. Cowan said that's something that we struggle with at all levels of
government. The Communications Advisory Committee has worked on getting
information to voters, and we've worked on social media and newsletters. Mr.
Papakonstantis said we had public hearings and an open house for the Police
Station and no one came. For the Siphons project, we had a 15 minute video
explanation; people loved the video and it led them to pay more attention. We're
looking at doing that with the Public Safety Complex project. Mr. Stevens said
there's power in residents talking to each ather about these issues.

Mr. Papakonstantis read the next student question: Why are there so
many Boards, what motivates people to volunteer, and are there problems
getting people to volunteer? Mr. Papakonstantis said these Boards and
Committees do the work for the Town and Select Board and communicate with
the public. Mr. Chartrand said he used to think the Committees were too much,
but the volunteers who staff those committees are the ones that kick off the
person-to-person communication process. The more people the town can get
involved, the more the word goes out. Ms. Cowan said New Hampshire is a State
that is largely run by volunteers and it would fall apart if not for volunteers. Many
Boards arise due to a need. Ms. Gilman spoke about her experiences at the
State level and Ms. Belanger spoke about her experience with the Housing
Advisory Committee.



Mr. Papakonstantis read the next student question: How would you
change the jurisdictional balance between the State, local, and national
government? Ms. Cowan said she would like the State to stop cutting into
municipal services. Mr. Chartrand said west of the Hudson, many services are
delivered at a county level, but here, services are delivered at a town level, which
involves a great deal of duplication and waste. That system is a tradition and
difficult to change. Ms. Gilman said she would change that there are only two
senators from each state. Mr. Papakonstantis said he would change the level of
State Aid municipalities receive. In an SB2 government, any big decisions have
to be made by the voters; it can make things frustrating, but it's incredibly
democratic. More people should attend Deliberative Session and have it be what
it's meant to be. It's the best form of government for a community our size.

Mr. Papakonstantis read the next student question: What's up with the
seals in the Exeter River? Ms. Cowan suggested climate change. Mr.
Papakonstantis said we’ll try to get you an answer.

Mr. Papakonstantis read the next student question: Is there anything the
town can do to improve nightlife for teenagers? Ms. Belanger asked for ideas.
Ms. Gilman said the work we're doing on the Town Hall could allow for more
performances. A student suggested expanding store hours in the town. Mr.
Chartrand said regarding expanded hours, a lot of businesses have single
proprietors. He asked what time the curfew is, and a student said it's 10 PM for
seniors during the week and 11 on Saturday, but 8 or 9 PM for other classes. Ms.
Gilman said places are having a hard time with getting help. A student added that
having restaurants open past 7 PM would be helpful for students, as the PEA
dinner service closes at 7.

A student asked about the relationship between the Academy and the
town. Mr. Papakonstantis said during the pandemic, the Board started getting
updates from Principal Rawson several times a year. Mr. Chartrand said 10
years ago, the town gave Gilman Lane to the academy for the campus and they
allowed us to lease a well that they own, so there's been that kind of cooperation.

Principal Rawson said when he started as Principal he reached out to the
Town Manager. He thought it was important to know the town. There are many
points of contact with the town besides the Principal. We want to be good citizens
of the town.

Principal Rawson said regarding businesses open at night, perhaps they
could rotate with one open late each night?

Principal Rawson gave an update on PEA. The construction of a faculty
neighborhood at 35 High Street will have a huge impact for faculty. We installed
86 new geothermal wells on the Academy lawn, and there were already 49 wells
there. The new wells will support the new Dining Hall and Academy Center. The
project is finished and we will put down seed, not sod, so it should be in good
shape for graduation. The Dining Hall should be completed next fall. The next
project is renovating the Academy building, a massive and expensive project. It
was built in 1914 and expanded but never renovated. It will cause inconvenience



for the students. We're expanding the hall so all students and faculty can fit in
there, and it can possibly host town events. This work is consistent with the
academy'’s Master Plan and Climate Plan. We're looking to be zero carbon by
2050. We're grateful for the strong relationship with Fire and Police. Regarding
the new Public Safety Complex, he suggested that on July 4 or Memorial Day
they could have an open house to draw people in. Regarding the crosswalks, we
have mandatory safety training on how to cross and show respect. At critical high
traffic periods, we have safety officers there. We sometimes hire a police detail.
We had a good opening of the school year. We had an Exeter Leadership
weekend with alumni and parent volunteers. Family weekend is in 2 weeks,
which is a big event. This weekend, we have the rivalry games with Phillips
Andover. Covid is not over, but we're managing it differently. We don’t seem to
be exceeding our capacity in the health center. If they can, students go home to
isolate. He added that the Academy pays quite a bit of property tax, not on its
academic buildings but on the many residential units it owns.

b. Voting Machines
Mr. Papakonstantis said regarding the new ballot counting device, the

Select Board approved the expenditure, but the Secretary of State requires that

the Board move to approve using the machines and have it recorded in the

minutes.
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to approve the use of the ImageCast pre-synced tabulators
made by Dominion and have the recorded minutes forwarded to the State by the Town Clerk.
Ms. Gilman seconded. The motion passed 5-0.

Ms. Cowan said the State has HAVA funds that should be spent to
support voter initiatives, and yet the town of Exeter has to pay for new voting
machines to replace the out of date ones.

¢. Pickpocket Dam Removal

Interim Public Works Director Paul Vlasich and Jacob San Antonio of
VHB were present to discuss the Pickpocket Dam study. Mr. Vlasich said we're
underway with a feasibility study at a cost of $373,000. We had a letter of
deficiency and we're figuring out how to bring the dam into compliance. We have
to make a decision by June of next year, and by December of 2027 the work
needs to be complete. We have two grants, one a Coastal Resilience Grant for
$40,000 and a Stormwater Planning Grant through DES for $100,000. Recently
he had a phone call from NOAA regarding a “Restoring Fish Passage through
Barrier Removal” grant. This would meet 100% of the cost for design, permitting,
and construction. The grant application was ahead of our schedule, but he
wanted to see if it made sense. He had the Chair schedule a September River
Advisory Committee meeting. The town would need to commit to the dam



removal option. The Committee voted to approve dam removal as the preferred
option.

Mr. San Antonio gave a presentation on the dam feasibility study. The
alternatives considered were different approaches to dam stabilization,
modification, or removal. There's one house that if the dam were to fail during a
100 year flood event, the water would be above their first floor. Kingston Road is
also overtopped at that event, which would make it still a significant hazard dam.
We're required to pass the 100 year storm event with one foot of freeboard, but
the abutments are already being overtopped, so we would still need to upgrade
the dam. That analysis doesn't take into account climate change.

Mr. San Antonio said the NOAA fisheries grant, Restoring Fish Passage
Through Barrier Removal, is focused on sea-run fish that spend part of time in
the ocean. There is no cost matching by the town. This year, the grant is heavily
funded, up to $175M. Our cost estimate is about $1M, so we're eligible to apply.
The application is due October 16 and we would hear back July 2024.

Mr. San Antonio said that part of the feasibility study is still underway,
evaluating impacts of the various alternatives on issues like cultural resources
and fish passage, but his opinion is that water levels downstream won'’t change
much with dam removal. The impoundment is a narrow valley and doesn't hold a
lot of water. Sediments in the river are relatively clean; there was some arsenic
found, but it's thought to be naturally occurring.

Mr. Chartrand asked if we did decide to pursue the grant, what is the
process? Does it need to be a town vote? Mr. Papakonstantis said we would just
move to authorize the town to move forward with pursuing the grant. If we got the
grant, we would contact the administrator in Brentwood and we would likely have
a public hearing at some point. Mr. Vlasich said for the application, he would
want a support letter from the town that dam removal is our preferred option. Mr.
Papakonstantis asked how it would go on the town warrant. Ms. Gilman said the
cost has to be on the warrant to appropriate the money.

Mr. Chartrand said he's in favor of proceeding. Ms. Belanger asked if
there would be additional costs not covered by the grant. Mr. San Antonio said
the estimate built in everything, including sediment removal and disposal, design
and permitting, and a three to five year monitoring period. To the best of his
knowledge, it covers everything.

Ms. Belanger asked about the impact on wells. If there is a cost there, is
that included? Mr. San Antonio said replacing residents’ wells is not included. We
have a legal opinion that the town wouldn't be responsible for impacts to
upstream wells.

Mr. Chartrand said it makes fiscal sense to pursue this grant, which would
take care of the issue at no cost. There are some questions about process, but
the grant application needs to be made in two weeks. It would be negligent not to
move forward on behalf of the town. Mr. Papakonstantis said we could have a
vote in March 2025. Ms. Cowan said we would be pushing for this even if there
weren't a grant. Something has to be done. Mr. San Antonio said this is once in a



lifetime funding. Mr. Stevens said could we put together a warrant article for 2024
contingent on getting the grant.
Mr. Papakonstantis said the River Advisory Committee unanimously
recommended moving forward with this.
Ms. Belanger asked when the rest of the feasibility study would be done,
and Mr. Vlasich said January 2024.
MOTION (not voted): Ms. Belanger moved to authorize the Interim Public works director Paul
Vlasich to move forward with the application process for the Barrier Removal Grant offered by
NOAA. Ms. Cowan seconded. Mr. Vlasich said the motion must include the endorsement of
dam removal as the preferred option. Ms. Belanger withdrew her motion and Ms. Cowan
withdrew her second.

MOTION (not voted): Ms. Cowan moved to authorize Interim Public works director Paul Vlasich
to pursue and submit the application process for the Barrier Removal Grant offered by NOAA
and for the Select Board to submit a letter of support endorsing the project to be submitted with
the grant. Ms. Gilman said the motion still doesn't include the endorsement of dam removal. Ms.
Cowan withdrew her motion

MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to authorize the Interim Public Works Director Paul Vlasich to
pursue and submit the application process, for the purposes of removing the Pickpocket Dam,
the Restoring Fish Passage Through Barrier Removal Grant offered by NOAA, and for the
Select Board to submit a letter of support endorsing the project. Ms. Gilman seconded. The
motion passed 5-0.

7. Tennis Court Resurfacing Request
Parks and Rec Director Greg Bisson said we previously discussed repaving the
tennis courts, but the cracks were more substantial than we anticipated. They were last
repaved 20 years ago. We can't do it in-house. New England Courts LLC can do the
leveling and put two coats of acrylic paint on the patched areas. To do the full repainting
would have been $80,000. The current balance in the Rec Revolving Fund is $152,000.
Mr. Chartrand asked how long the repair will last. Mr. Bisson said 5-10 years. He
added that one of the reasons it cracks so much is the lack of drainage
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to authorize the use of $28,000 from the Rec Revolving Fund to
contract with New England Courts LLC to resurface the courts. Ms. Cowan seconded. The
motion passed 5-0.

Ms. Cowan asked Mr. Bisson to give a Rec Advisory Board update. Mr. Bisson
said he will be coming to the Board for a new field rental pricing update. It hasn’t been
updated in 20 years. We have such high use that we have to get something back from
the user groups.

8. Regular Business
a. Tax Abatements, Veterans Credits and Exemptions
i.  There were no abatements or exemptions considered at this meeting.



b. Permits & Approvals
i.  There were no abatements or exemptions considered at this meeting.

c. Town Manager's Report
i.  The Town Manager was not present at this meeting to give an update.

d. Select Board Committee Reports
i.  Ms. Cowan had no report.
ii. Mr. Chartrand had no report
ii. Ms. Gilman said the Town Hall Stakeholders group met on Wednesday to
look over three ideas the consultant has proposed.
iv.  Ms. Belanger had no report.
v.  Mr. Papakonstantis attended a Budget Recommendations committee
meeting, where Mr. Dean presented the budget

e. Correspondence .
i. A letter from the Planning Board to the Select Board endorsing the CIP
and the Safety Complex.
i.  An NHMA Legislative Bulletin
ii. A notice from the Town of Hampton Planning Board on a Public hearing.

9. Review Board Calendar
a. The next Board meetings are October 16, October 30, November 6, November
20, December 4, and December 18. Oct 11 is the “All-Boards” meeting at the
Library. October 18 is the Right to Know training, also at the Library.

10. Non-Public Session
a. There was no non-public session at this time.

11. Adjournment
MOTION: Ms. Belanger moved to adjourn. Ms. Cowan seconded. The motion passed 5-0 and
the meeting was adjourned at 9:56 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,
Joanna Bartell
Recording Secretary



Water/Sgwer Rates Hearing - Continued



= UNDERWOOD

engineers

25 Vaughan Mall
Portsmouth, NH, 03801-4012
Tel: 603-436-6192 Fax: 603-431-4733

Technical Memorandum

To: Russell Dean, Town Manager, Town of Exeter, NH

From: Meagan McCowan, P.E. (NH), Senior Project Enginecer MLM M
Keith Pratt, P.E. (NH, ME, MA), President

ce:

Date: August 11, 2023

Subject: Fire Protection Charge Analysis for the Town of Exeter

Background

The Town of Exeter has requested Underwood Engineers (UE) to perform an analysis for and
suggest an approximate Fire Protection Charge that could be assessed to the Town General Fund
using American Water Works Association (AWWA) guidance.

Fire protection charges include costs associated with larger tanks, larger mains, backflow
preventers, hydrants, etc. Sprinklers (service connections) are another source of revenue relating
to fire protection. It is common practice that the General Fund (general taxation) is assessed a Fire
Protection Charge because it is generally accepted that it is an obligation of general government,
and fire protection benefits the entire Town, not just the water users. UE calculated a Fire
Protection Charge for Exeter based on guidance by the “Principles of Water Rates, Fees, and
Charges — Manual of Water Supply Practices (M1)” per AWWA standards.

AWWA suggests that costs associated with fire protection in a water system range from 5% (larger
systems) to 40% (smaller systems). Two methods are generally used to establish the costs
associated with fire protection:

1. Cost Curves generated from a Maine Water Utilities Association study.

2. Cost Allocation Study (Cost of Service).

Computations

The Town of Exeter has not completed a Cost of Service Study, so the Cost Curve method was
used in this analysis. The Cost Curve method uses the graph shown on Figure I below. According
to the method, the peak hour flow can be estimated using 2.5 times the average daily flow in
gallons per minute.

G:\PROJECTS'\EXETER, NHIREALNUM2890 - Water and Sewer Rate Study - 2022108 Comps\Report\ 2890 Excter Fire Protection Charge Analysis Tech Memo 8.11.23.docx



aenaii

Fire Protection Charge
August 11,2023

UNDERWOOD
il cengineers

Figure 1. Cost Curve Method

430% T

40.0%

35.0%

30.0%

250%

B R e I A N
. - - GPM REQD. Fire Flow (NBF.U) =
N 1 1020¥01-.01vi0
v~ X= Poputation in Thousands
L o * incrementad Allocations
i S ek O A Capacity Ratka Alfocations
R 4000 48 NOTE: tN CASES WHERE THE PEAX
e S HOURLY FLOW 1S NOT READILY
AVAILABLE, IT CAN BE ESTIMATED ON

THE BASIS OF 2-12 TIMES THE

i
sk tas b o]

i——% AVERAGE DALY FLOW IN GPM,

R AN M 3
Y

0.0

% of Gross Revenue to Public Fire Protection Charge

05 1.0

Ratio = PEAK HOUR RATE GPM / REQD, FIRE FLOW (N.B.F.U.)' GPM

1.5

20 25

The average daily production for Exeter was calculated using an average for 2019 to 2021 data.
See Table 1 for a summary of average daily production.

Table 1. Summary of Exeter Average Daily Production

Year Gallons Per Year Days in Period Ga:;):ls“:’:: dl))ay
2019 348,134,349 365 954,000
2020 337,766,143 366 923,000
2021 358,754,288 365 983,000
Average 348,218,260 365 953,000

The average daily production of 953,000 gallons per day is about 660 gpm. Consequently, the peak
hour flow is estimated as 2.5 times 660 gpm, which is approximately 1,650 gpm.

The required fire flow is calculated using Equation I described below, and as shown on Figure 1.

Regq. Fire Flow = 1,020 X vx x (1-0.01vx)

X = population in thousands

G:APROJECTS\EXETER, NH\REALNUM\28Y0 - Water aud Scwer Rate Siudy - 202208 Comps\Report\2890 Excter Fire Protection Charge Analysis Tech Memo 8.11.23.doex

Eq. 1

Page 2 of 3



DERWOOD

fengineers: -

Fire Protection Charge

August 11, 2023

The population of the Town of Exeter is 15,847, according to the 2021 Census. Using this number,
the required fire flow was calculated as approximately 3,900 gpm. Consequently, the ratio of Peak
Hour flow and Required Fire Flow is 0.42.

Using the Cost Curve, a ratio of 0.42 is equivalent to 31% of gross revenue attributable to the Fire
Protection Charge. See Figure 2 below.

Figure 2. Percentage of Revenue Attributable to the Fire Protection Charge (Exeter)

45.0% - T TN U S50 NN S e CHROTOY SO RO Y YO SO T SO o
o G (e By o s S8 e
VO TR T T emmuz)mmmum-
ORI TR 1000101 B
38.0% X= Poputafion in Thougands
31.0% p Aiocadions
i A Capacity Ratio Allocationa
NOTE: IN CASES WHERE THE PEAX
HOURLY FLOW IS NOT READILY
25.0% AVAILABLE, IT CAN BE ESTIMATED ON
THE BASTS OF 212 TIMES THE
AV DALY RROW INGPM.

1005

5.0%

0.0 0.42 10 1s 20 25 30

%% of Groas Roverwe to Publis Fire Protection Charge
g §

Ratio = PEAK HOUR RATE GPM / REQD. FIRE FLOW (N.B.F1)) GPM

While the cost curve indicates 31% of the Water Department budget could be assessed to the
General Fund ($1.6M in 2024), UE recommends targeting 15% of the Water Department budget
until the cost of service can be computed. Fifteen percent is equal to approximately a $750k
General Fund contribution in 2024 and a $1.1M contribution in 2028. UE recommends that the
General Fund Contribution be increased in steps over the next several years until the 15% target
is reached.

GAPROJECTS\EXETER, NAREALNUM\2R90 - Water and Sewer Rt Study - 2022108 Comps\Report\2890 Excter Fire Protection Charge Analysis Tech Memo 8.11.23.docx
Page 3 of 3



= UNDERWOOD

engineers

25 Vaughan Mall
Portsmouth, NH, 03801-4012
Tel: 603-436-6192 Fax: 603-431-4733

Technical Memorandum

To: Russell Dean, Town Manager, Town of Exeter, NH

From: Meagan McCowan, P.E. (NH), Senior Project Engineer MLM M
Keith Pratt, P.E. (NH, ME, MA), President

et

Date: August 11, 2023

Subject: Irrigation and Deduct Meter Review
Water Enterprise Fund
Exeter, NH

Background

The Town of Exeter has requested Underwood Engineers (UE) review the current Town practices
for offering and charging for irrigation and deduct meters, and to provide recommended actions
where appropriate.

Exeter currently bills accounts a service fee and a consumption charge. It is assumed that the
metered water enters the sewer system (i.e. showers or sink faucets) so the same metered amount
is billed for sewer as well. Exeter allows irrigation/deduct meters in certain cases. When provided,
irrigation and deduct meters measure usage that is not expected to enter the sewer system. These
meters are both used to measure irrigation usage, with irrigation meter usage being measured in
parallel to the master meter and deduct meter usage being measured following the master meter
and subtracted out from the sewer bill. Irrigation and deduct meters incur costs associated with
installation and maintenance of an additional water meter at a property, administration/billing, and
water usage.

The intent of this review is to provide recommendations, based on financial and logistical impacts,
for opening the irrigation program to all users and allowing deduct meters for commercial non-
irrigation purposes.

Rate Structure & Current Rates

As stated above, Exeter water and sewer rates include a quarterly service fee and a tiered
consumption charge. The quarterly fixed fee is the same for all users, regardless of meter size.

There are three tiers for consumption, which increase in cost as more water is used. Tier | currently

G:\PROJECTS\EXETER, NH\REALNUM\2890 - Water and Sewer Rate Study - 202208 Comps\Irigation\2890 Exeter Inigation Tech Memo 8.11,23.doex



E‘UNE WOOL
RITIYTeN ’

“engineers’

Irrigation and Deduct Meter Review
August 11,2023

includes 0-21,000 gallons per quarter and captures about 97% of residential consumption. Tier 2
includes consumption between 21,000 — 105,000 gallons per quarter, and Tier 3 includes
Consumption >105,000 gallons per quarter. Existing irrigation meters are currently charged using
these tiers and rates.

Current water and sewer rates are included in Table 1.

Table 1. Current Water & Sewer Rates

Rate Quarterly Tier 1 ) Tier 2 . Tier 3 )
Type Service Fee Consumption Consumption Consumption
P Charge ($/1000 gal) | Charge ($/1000 gal) | Charge (8/1000 gal) |
Water $43 $9.32 $11.66 $13.98
Sewer $41 $16.34 $20.42 $24.51

Irrigation Rates
UE reviewed Irrigation Charges from Portsmouth, NH as a model to determine what Exeter’s

system may look like. The current rates are shown below. Portsmouth charges a service fee based
on meter size, which was not included on this table.

Table 2. Portsmouth Rates (per unit of 748 gallons)

Ratio of Irrigation
Tier Water | Sewer | Irrigation | Charge to Tier 1
Water Charge
Tier 1 (0-10 units) $4.54 | $15.78 | $5.46 1.2
Tier 2 (10-20 units) $5.46 | $17.36 | $10.30 23
Tier 3 (>20 units) $12.71 2.8

Portsmouth has historically noted that irrigation meters result in a loss of billed sewer usage and
anecdotally may not actually encourage efficient use of water. Users are required to participate in
the EPA Watersense Program in order to apply for an irrigation meter and are required to use a
Watersense Certified contractor for irrigation system installation. This requirement should be
considered by Exeter as well.

As an illustration, UE used the ratio of Portsmouth’s irrigation charge to their Tier 1 water charge
to create an irrigation charge model for Exeter. These rates are shown below. It was assumed that
the current Tier structure would remain and that irrigation would be billed at the respective Tier
(i.e. an account may be billed at Tier 2 for water and Tier 1 for irrigation).

GAPROJECTS\EXETER, NH\REALNUM\2890 - Waster and Scwer Rate Study - 2022\08 Comps\lzrigation\2890 Exeter Inigation Tech Memo X.11.23.docx
Page 2 of 4



engineers = :

Irrigation and Deduct Meter Review
August 11, 2023

Table 3. Exeter Rates (per 1000 gallons)

Example | Ratio of Irrigation
Tier Water | Sewer | Irrigation| Charge to Tier 1
Rate Water Charge
Tier 1 (0-21,000) $9.32 | $16.34 | $11.21 1.2
Tier 2 (21,001-105,000) | $11.66 | $20.42 | $21.14 23
Tier 3 (>105,000) $13.98 | $24.51 | $26.09 2.8
Service fee $43.00 | $41.00 | $43.00

UE calculated sample bills for Tier 1, Tier 2, and Tier 3 customers for Exeter using the current rate
structure and the new rate structure that includes irrigation charges. These calculations are shown
in Attachment A.

Although the customers with irrigation meters would be charged an additional service fee and
higher consumption rates compared to water using the example presented in this memorandum,
the increase in water revenue does not make up for the loss of sewer revenue. In order for this to
be remedied, Exeter would need to increase sewer rates to cover revenue lost from irrigation users.
UE found during the recent water and sewer rate study (June 2023) that Exeter’s rates are already
higher than the state average and similar systems and the current tiered rate structure provides
incentives for conservation

Irrigation rates are typically charged at a higher rate since they typically increase water demand
during peak water usage times and to encourage conservation. UE recommends separate higher
irrigation rates be implemented in Exeter at some point, similar to the Portsmouth model since it
provides a more equitable structure. UE recommends that irrigation rates be reconsidered again in
the future as conditions may warrant it.

Non-Irrigation Deduct Meters

Deduct meters for commercial non-irrigation purposes would be billed under the existing water
rate structure instead of an increased irrigation rate. Sample bills were also calculated for non-
irrigation deduct meters (Attachment A). Allowing these meters would result in revenue loss due
to the lack of sewer consumption billed that would require sewer rate adjustments.

Conclusions

This review determined the following:
e Exeter currently allows irrigation meters within its water system for residential users. These
users are billed for consumption at these meters under the current water rates. Non-
irrigation deduct meters are not currently allowed.

G:\PROJECTS\EXETER, NH\REALNUM\2890 - Water aud Scwer Rate Study - 2022108 Comps\mrigation\2890 Exeter Inigation Tech Memo R.11.23.doex
Page 3 of 4



'- engineg o )

ra

lrngatlon and Deduct Meter Review
August 11,2023

Expanding the irrigation meter program would likely result in a loss of sewer revenue
without a rate adjustment.

Expanding the use of deduct meters will result in a loss of sewer revenue unless sewer rates
are adjusted.

Deduct meters may be appropriate for commercial uses as well.

Recommendations

Based on these findings, UE presents the following recommendations:

Allow irrigation and deduct meters for commercial users;

Irrigation and deduct meters shall be subject to a separate service fee;

Irrigation meters and deduct meters used for irrigation shall be charged irrigation rates
if/when implemented;

The irrigation rates shall be higher than water rates to recover the cost of the peak demands
and to encourage conservation;

The Town may choose to require the irrigation systems to be water-efficient and be
certified by the EPA WaterSense program; and

Prior to allowing deduct and irrigation meters, the Town should estimate the amount of
anticipated lost revenue and plan for how that revenue will be recovered.

G:\PROJECTS\EXETER, NH\REALNUM\2890 - Water aud Sewer Rate Study - 202208 Comps\migation\2890 Exeter Inigation Tech Memo R.11.23.doex

Page 4 of 4



Attachment A
Sample Irrigation and Deduct Meter Bills
Water/Sewer Rate Study
Exeter, NH

April 11, 2023
Exeter Bills for Irrigation Water With and Without lrrigation Meter

Exater Rates (per 1000 ga!lons) ‘
Ratlo of Irrlgation Charge to Tier
Current Bills New Bills Change in Revenue Water  [Sewer  |irrigation |1 Water Charge

JEst. Usage per _ |Est. Irvigation Usage
User Quarter per Quarter Water Sewer Tota! Water Sewer Irrigation Tier 1(0-21,000) $9.32/ 16.34 11.21)1.2
Tier 1 User 20,000 10,000 $229.40 $367.80] $597.20] $136.20| $204.40 $155.09 Tier 2 (21,001-105,000) 11,66 20.42 21.14)2.3
Tler 2 User 100,000 50,000 $1,159.86 $1,997.32 $3,157.18] 5576.86] $976.32 $891.57 Tier 3 (>105,000) 13.98| 24.51 26.0912.8
Tier 3 User 250,000 125,000 $3,245.26 $5,653.37] $8,898.63] $1,497.76] $2,589.62 $2,576.36 Service fee 143.00| 41.00 43.00
Exeter Biils for Deduct Meter Current Bills New Bills Change in Revenue

Eﬂ. Usage per TEst Deduct Usage
User Quarter per Quarter Water Sewer Tota! Water Sewer Total Sewer
Tier 1 User 20,000 10,000 $229.40 $367.80] $597.20] $229.40] $204.40 $433.80] : ; X
Tier 2 User 100,000 50,000 $1,159.86, $1,997.32| $3,157.18] $1,155.86] $976.32 SZ,IJG.IBI» o $1.021:00;
Tier 3 User 250,000 125,000 $3,245.26 $5,653.37| $8,898.63] $3,245.26] $2,589.62 $5,834.88] - .063.73!

1. Exeter irrigation rates based on rate ratios of Portsmouth irrigation rates.

2. Assumed current Tiers structure.

3, Assumed that irrigation meters will be read and billed through water department.

4. Assumed that irrigation will be billed at the respective Tier bosed on irrigation usage, not total water usage {i.e. an account may be billed at Tier 2 for water and Tier 1 for irrigation).

G:\PROJECTS\EXETER, NH\REALNUM\2890 - Water and Sewer Rate Study - 2022\08 Comps\lrrigation\Copy of Irrigation biliing example MLM



2023 WATER/SEWER RATE STUDY
TOWN OF EXETER, NH

Underwood Engineers
September I, 2023




Goals/Purpose

» Review rate design

 Create water and sewer rate models to project
revenues and expenditures for five years (2028)

Provide recommendations to support the Water &
Sewer budgets and Capital Improvements
Programs (CIPs)

» Review miscellaneous charges, System
Development Charges (SDCs), and multi-unit
billings




Prior Rate Work

* Prior rate study performed by Municipal and
Financial Services Group in 2016

* Served Town well for 2016-2021 planning
period

* Current rates are generally consistent with the
recommendations from the 2016 report




Background

Water Budget

Water
Consumption

Sewer Budget

Sewer
Consumption

2016 (Prior) | 2023 (Current) | 2028 (Projected) |
$2.2M $4.5M $7.4M +236%

322 MGY 312 MGY 312 MGY -3%

$1.7M $7.4M $9.7M | +471%
336 MGY 309 MGY 309 MGY -8%
Costs are increasing and
sales are decreasing
(Conservation)




5-Year CIP

Funding
Capital Project’ Source 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028
New Groundwater Development Phase 2 Bond $5,509,000( payments begin
Schoal Street Area Design Bond $145,000( payments begin
'School Street Area Reconstruction Bond $1.570,000( payments begin
Water Street Design Bond $150,000| payments begin
Water Street Reconstruction Bond $1.660.000( payments begin
Surface Water Treatment Plant Design Bond $2,500,000| payments begin
Water Main Rehabilitation Bond $1.730,000| payments begin
Water Main Rehabilitation Bond $1,730,000| payments begin
Water Main Rehabilitation Bond $1,730,000| payments begin
vehicles $98,785 $42 892
| TOTAL CIP (5-year) Water $ 1 7M 328,785 $1,772,892 $0
Capital Project’ S ewer p— $ 1 3 M 6 2027 2028
Squamscott River Sewer Siphons Phase 2 T —— - Ay LT A A L
Sewer Capacity Rehabilitation Construction Bond $3.420,000 payments begin
Water Street Design Bond $150,000 payments begin
Water Street Reconstruction Bond $1,455,000 payments begin
Washington Street Design Bond $95,000 payments begin
Washington Street Construction Bond $850.,000
School Street Design Bond $110,000 payments begin
School Street Reconstruction - Sewer Fund Bond $1,245,000 payments begin
Sewer Line Rehabilitation Bond $1,284,000 payments begin
Sewer Line Rehabilitation Bond $1,284.000 payments begin
WWTF Upgrades Phase 1 Design Bond $200.000 payments begin
WWTF Upgrades Phase 1 Construction Bond $2,550,000
Replace Vactor Truck #67 Lease $548,369
Valve Operator car#120 (Split 50/50) Lease $115,041
Loader/Backhoe car#53 (Split 50/50) Lease $197,570
Vehicles Budget $151,950 $117,077 $98,785 $42,892
DPW Facility Design Sewer Fund $12,500
TOTAL CIP 2024-2028 (5-year) $13,366,314 $4,060,869 $3,831,950 $2932,118 $1,580,355 $1,621,892 $3,400,000




Water — Exisiting & Proposed Debt Service
& Leases

Projects Include:

New Groundwater Development Phase 2
School Street Area Design
School Street Area Reconstruction

Water Street Design

‘Water Street Reconstruction

Surface Water Treatment Plant Design
Water Main Rehabilitation

Water Main Rehabilitation

Water Main Rehabilitation

Vehicles




Water — Prior & Projected Expenditures

$8,000,000
$7,000,000
$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
2016 Budget $2.2M
$2,000,000
$1,000,000

$0
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

s Projected Expenditures ¢ Prior Expenditures




Sewer — Exisiting & Proposed Debt Service

Projects Include:

gquamscott River Sewer Siphons Phase 2
ewer Capacity Rehabilitation Construction
Water Street Design

Water Street Reconstruction

Washington Street Design

Washington Street Construction

School Street Design

chool Street Reconstruction - Sewer Fund
Sewer Line Rehabilitation

Sewer Line Rehabilitation

WWTF Upgrades Phase 1 Design

WWTF Upgrades Phase 1 Construction
Replace Vactor Truck #67

Valve Operator car#120 (Split 50/50)
Loader/Backhoe car#53 (Split 50/50)
Vehicles

DPW Facility Design

W |W\»n»

w




Sewer — Prior & Projected Expenditures

$12,000,000
$10,000,000
$8.,000,000
$6,000,000
$4,000,000
$2.,000,000

016 Budget $2.2M

$0
2018 2020 2022 2024 2026 2028

¢ Prior Expenditures o Projected Expenditures




Current Water & Sewer Rates

Quarterly
Service
Fee

Tier 1
Consumption
Charge ($/1000

gal)
$9.32

$16.34

Tier 2
Consumption
Charge ($/1000

gal)

3-Tier System
Promotes Conservation

Tier 3
Consumption
Charge ($/1000

gal)
$13.98

$24.51




Rate Design

* UE reviewed the following rate design options:
— Increasing Tier 1 to 56%
— Implementing AW WA meter ratioS Recommended Option

— Increasing meter revenue to 20%
— Modifying Tier Levels (i.e., Tier 1 to 40%)
— Eliminating Tiers
Rate Design Items Focus
on Recovering Cost of
Service




Recommendations — Rate Design

* Implement AWWA meter ratios for meter
charges

Meter Size | Cost Ratio

Currently Exeter
Charges $43 regardless
of meter size




Rate Setting Goals

Fund CIP and Debt Service
Fund Projected 5-Year Budget
Maintain or only slight increase fund balances

Consider Cost of Service




Key Points in Presentation

One Rate Redesign Around Meter Charge

Increase GF contributions to Water Fund for
Fire Suppression

Reset “Assessment Fees” to SDC
Adjust Miscellaneous charges

Adjust Rates to Support Budget, Debt Service
and Future CIP







Water — Revenue Inputs/Assumptions

Accounts by meter st s
3, — 3,49 (increasing 0.84% annually to 3.671 by 2028)

®

e 17-136
Accounts o 1-1/27-80

e 2”103

e 378

o 472

e 312 MGY based on previous 3-year average and projected
to be flat for six years
51% of consumption in Tier 1, 21% in Tier 2, and 28% in

Tier
o Consumption was assumed not to increase
$66,3 . 1 i , based on previous

3-year average and analysis of line items
nererrtty $20,000

Assumed to increase to $100.000 in 2024, and then $50,000

annually thereafter

Consumption

Other Revenue

General Fund Contributions
(Hydrant Maintenance Fee)



Industry Standard
Fire Suppression Contribution

It is common practice that the General Fund (GF) (general taxation)
is assessed a Fire Protection Charge because it 1s generally accepted
that Fire Protection i1s an obligation of general government

Fire protection benefits the entire Town, not just the water users
Significant investment in the system for fire protection

Can range from 5% (large systems) to 40% (small systems)
(AWWA)

UE calculated 31% of Water Budget could be assessed to General
Fund (Cost Curve Method)

UE recommends 15% of Water Budget be assessed to General Fund
until the actual cost can be determined (Cost of Service)




Exeter Rates
Fire Suppression Contribution

* Increase step-wise until goal is reached starting
at $100,000 increasing $50,000 per year

* Model assumes GF contribution reaching
$300k by 2028
e Other communities with GF Contribution for
Fire Protection
— Wolfeboro: currently ~18%
— PWW $3.2M on taxation




2023
(0%)

2024
(20%)

$42.12

$58.97

$75.82  $84.16 $103.51

il 228168 SS 185 S S =S166.77

$463.32 $514.29 $632.57

$589.68 $654.54 $805.09
Consumption Charge

9.3

Tier 2 $11.66

51398

$46.75
$65.45

So7S1
$80.51

$10.07
$12:59
$15.10

$11.17
$13.98
$16.76

$13.74
$17.19
$20.61

$62.68
$87.75
$112.83
$181.78
$689.50
$877.55

$14.98
$18.74
$22.47

$64.56
$90.39
$116.21
$187.23
$710.19
$903.87

$15.43
$19.30
$23.14

$67.14
$94.00
$120.86
$194.72
$738.59
$940.03

$16.05
$20.07
$24.07







Sewer — Revenue Inputs/Assumptions

Accounts ' as 101TOWS: s
723,354 (increasing 0.79% annually to 3,495 by 2028)

o

o 17118
Accounts o 1-1/27-75

e 27-101

e 378

o 473

e 309.1 MGY based on previous 3-year average and
projected to be flat for six years
Consumption e 50% of consumption in Tier 1, 21% in Tier 2, and 29% in

Tle PO T v, wranwes
Con

sumption was assumed not to increase
- et -year average and

A

analysis of line items
State Aid Grant ranging from $1.39M in 2023 to $1M in
028

Other Revenue

General Fund Contributions



Sewer — Recommended Rates

o R [ 2026 | 2027 | 2028
° B | @%) " @2%) | @%) | @% | @%)

Meter Charge
$37.00 $38.48  $43.10  $44.82  $46.61  $48.48
P $ois0 Ne5aiRTL Ne0BAT UBeos i8es e e

1
o 56660 $6926  §77.58  $80.68  $83.91  $87.26
$107.30 $111.59 $124.98 $129.98 $135.18 $140.59
$407.00 $423.28 $474.07 $493.04 $512.76 $533.27

$518.00 $538.72 | $603.37  $627.50 $652.60 $673.71

2
2

b b

2

Consumption Charge

$1634 $16.34 $1699 $19.03 $19.79  $20.59  $21.41
NEZE $2042  $2042  $2124  $23.79  $24.74  $25.73  $26.76
S T SO R i s




System Development Charge
Recommendations

Motor Size Equivalent Estimated Use | Water Equity Sewer Equity
EDUs (gpd) Buy-In Cost | Buy-In Cost
1 111

5/8” & 3/4" $415 Each $201 Each

225 278 $1,038 Each 502 Each
1-1/2” 5.0 5)3)5) $2,076 Each $1,005 Each
2” and Greater Varies s apr?;“‘?v\iled o $3.74 per gpd $1.81 per gpd

Same Fee — renamed to
industry standard
based on equity

i
2




Miscellaneous Charge Recommendations

(Charge Description Jcurrent Exeter Charge [supgested Exeter Charge Jnterrimack Portsmouth [reewemarket |nvittord [epping [oover
Service Fees

T r On/Off (including for nonpayment) $50| 540 $24) 4 524
Turn Woter On/Off (After hows) 5190
Disconnect $50
Finol Reading $35) 540 530/
Backfiow Test 550]

At cost Az cost
General Senvice Fe 550/hr. = material 535/houit with two hous musir
After Hours Service Fee 5190 $100/he. (2 he. minamum)| $300] $40/nour witn 3 haur manimur 1 5x narmal r

Connection

00 rental

X0 depeit Matar

15% abave current rate plus meter]  Meter 535/day |5 $H.75/100
S8 75/1000 gallans

Balk Water Purchase fram Hydrant
, fee (current tiered rates apply) foe commercial) deposit

Hose rantal: 56 50/day/ 100 feat

$200

Mydrant Flow Test $100 = cost of cutsade services 575,

$140/vear

Permit: $30/year

Hydrant Rentol/Maint

1t OF Inspection

Backfiow Preventer Inspection: $30/year est: $50 - est: §31.25 Per
e Re-Inspection: $30/year o 5 yoar Permit Re
Fine- first offense $100 + labor & material + 15%
Fine- second offense $500 + labor B mateasl « 15% B
Fine- thed offense 500 plus abar and materials
550, charge wanved if fault found
Meter Test* Chavge waivwed | T found Actual cost 875/ haur - L35
with meter| 15" meter: $
Frozen Meter AL cost, 5190 minkmum| $225(5475 aher hours} + ST5M LS Ly S50/ hour
aftar tirst hour »1.5" metar: $100
$60 to turn on meter, S50 to turm
Tempaorory Construction Metes Off meter » current consumption
rate | ed rates apply)
Seasonal Mele afl & Turn On 560
Seasongl Meter Remave & Tum Off Séd)
S60 admin lee plus meter costs
Declice Metér Billed quarterly water service) 16 poud Tl credit o] Otfers pool fill credit of sewer
charges ang tered consumption sewer charges charges
rates|
Septoge S0.08/gallon S0.08/gallon| $78.40/1000 gallons) S75/1000 gallons 50 09/gallon Non
Repoir/Replace existing serwoe Al cost S$60 pius parts|
(Admin Fees
Ownership Chon r Billing / Account Estab. Fee 525

ees based on Cost of

Connection Fees (Including Meter fastallation)

S/8or 3/4 S300 plus mater $1,300

Iincth $300 plus mater

ot

> dwnch
Second meter

Connection for hre prote

Commercial

T - Benchmarking

see SDC recommend ations

Water

¢ SOC recommendations

ik

Sewer $4.85/gallon




Recommendations — Water Rate
Adjustments

e

Meter Charge
Ya” $42.12
$58.97
| B2 $75.82
$1221S
S $463.32
$589.68

$43.00

Consumption Charge

$9.32

$10.07
$12.59
$15.10

116
513,

2024
(20%)

$46.75
$65.45
$84.16
$135.58
$514.29
$654.54

$11.17
$13.98
$16.76

$57.51
$80.51
$103.51
$166.77
$632.57
$805.09

$13.74
$17.19
$20.61

$62.68

$87.75

$112.83
$181.78
$689.50
$877.55

$14.98
$18.74
$22.47

$64.56
$90.39
$116.21
$187.23
$710.19
$903.87

$15.43
$19.30
$23.14

2025 2026 2027 2028
(23%) 9%) 3%) (4%)

$67.14
$94.00
$120.86
$194.72
$738.59
$940.03

$16.05
$20.07
$24.07




Recommendations — Sewer Rate

Adjustments

. [OOSR 2025 | 2026 2028
Existing ;_ |

(0%) 4%) (12%) (4%) __(4%)

Meter Charge

$37.00  $38.48  $43.10 $44.82  $46.61 $48.48
SoI-80r mbo3uRge 86084« 156205 ¢ - 86526, - $67.87
$66.60  $69.26  $7F.58 $80:68  «$83.9i1 $87.26
$107.30 $111.59 $124.98 $129.98 $135.18 $140.59
$407.00 $423.28 $474.07 $493.04 $512.76 $533.27
$518.00 $538.72 $603.37 $627.50 $652.60 $678.71
Consumption Charge

Silos4s 91634 $16:99  SSIOI03E" SN TR F$00.59 - 182141

$20042 . 92042« 2§21824 ¢ $23.99 5. 82494 85 G3 $26.76

$24.51 $24.51 $25:49 % $2855 . 8291698 & $30-88: . $30 I

$41




Water — Sample Bills

2022

Lok (Current)

Residential (5/8”)
(111 gpd, average $550 $576 $640 $787 $858 $883 $919
residential user)

Commercial (1.5”)
(4,000 gpd, $19.412  §$21,082 $23,401 $28,784 $31,374 $32,315 $33,608
example account)




Sewer — Sample Bills

2022
(Current)

Residential (5/8”)
(111 gpd, average $826 $810 $842 $944 $981  $1,020 $1,061
residential user)
Commercial (1.5”)
(4,000 gpd, $33,888  $33,990 $35,350 $39,592 $41,176 $42,823 $44,536
example account)




Sample Bills (W&S — Town) for
Average Residential

TOWN OF EXETER - WATER/SEWER BILL SAMPLE - 2023
Sewer Total Qtrly Bill Total Yrly Cost YOY Increase

Usage/Gallons per quarter

Divided/1000 (to get per 1,000 rate)
Rate (per 1,000 gallons)

Total Usage Charge
Total Quarterly Service Fee

Total Fee (Water/Sewer)

Water

10,129

10.13
9.32

10,129

10.13
16.34

94.40
43.00

165.50
41.00

137.40

206.50 343.90 1,375.61

TOWN OF EXETER - WATER/SEWER BILL SAMPLE - 2024 ESTIMATED

Usage/Gallons per quarter

Divided/1000 (to get per 1,000 rate)
Rate (per 1,000 gallons)

Total Usage Charge
Total Quarterly Service Fee

Total Fee (Water/Sewer

Water

10,129

10.13
11T

Sewer Total Qtrly Bill Total Yrly Cost
10,129

10.13
16.99

113.16
46.75

Y22
38.48

159.91

210.60 370.51 1,482.04




Summary of Recommendations
(Current)

1. Update Misc. Fees
2. Update SDC
3. Adjust Water Rates

— 8% 1n 2023
— 11% 1n 2024 (20% now)

4. Adjust Sewer Rates

— 0% 1n 2023 o Use Meter Ratios
— 4% 1n 2024

Increase GF contributions for Water




Summary of Recommendations
(Future)

» Review/Refresh the model every 2-years

» Update/Overhaul the model every 5-years
* Future Considerations

— Irrigation and Deduct Meters

— Additional or Accelerated GF Contributions for
Water Rates

— Surface Water Treatment Plant




QUESTIONS?




Request For 15 Minute Parking Limit — Amendment to 103.7 of Town Parking Ordinances



103.5 30 — Minute Parking Limit School Hours

103.6 30 — Minute Parking Limit

103.7 15 — Minute Parking Limit

103.10 Robert H. Stewart Park: Parking space at island to Boat Launch for Harbor
Master.

110 Penalties
A person violating any provision of Chapter 1 of the Traffic Code shall be
punished by a fine of not more than one hundred ($100) dollars for each
offense, except that optional procedures set forth in Section 110.1 may be
used in lieu of court proceedings for violations of Chapter 1.



. oy
Front Street Cabin,
Lpir*

Enna Chocolate

Lux Studio




?/ofoxJ short (w’;m pEes

VOl ferne="0077

T S \
| l




MRI Revaluation Contract




CYCLICAL REVALUATION CONTRACT

SUBJECT: CYCLICAL REVALUATION means the process of a revaluation of all taxable and nontaxable properties in
a Municipality, using existing property data, to arrive at full and true value as of April 1.

The Town of EXETER, NH, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of New
Hampshire, hereinafter called Municipality; and, MUNICIPAL RESOURCES, INC. a business organization existing
under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, and having a principal place of business at, 66 Main Street Suite B,
Plymouth, NH 03264 hereinafter called Contractor, hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. PARTIES
1.1 Name of Municipality:
1.2 Mailing Address of Municipality:

1.3 Contracting Official(s) name(s) and tile(s)
for Municipality:

1.4 Telephone and Fax numbers:

1.5 E-mail Address, if applicable:

1.6 Name of Contractor:

1.7 Mailing Address of Contractor:

1.8 Principal Place of Business:

1.9 E-mail Address, if applicable:

1.10 Telephone and Fax numbers:

1.11 Name and Title of Authorized Contractor:

1.12 Type of Business Organization:

DEFINITIONS:

Town of Exeter, New Hampshire

10 Fron| Exeter,
Russell Dean, Town Manager
Exeter Select Board

Phone: (603) 773-6102
Fax: (603)777-1514

rdean@exeternh.gov

Municipal Resources, Inc.

66 Main Street, Suite B Plymouth, NH 03264

Plymouth, New Hampshire

Assessing@mrigov.com
Phone: (603) 279-0352

Fax: (603) 7074819

Scott Marsh, CNHA, DRA Assessor Supervisor

Corporation

Abatement Review means to make an assessment recommendation to the municipal assessing officials or to make a
change to an assessment that is in response to an abatement request from a taxpayer. Rev 601.01

Appraisal means the act or process of developing a market value estimate of property which will be used as the basis for
valuation, fulfilling a municipality’s statutory duties relative to property tax administration including, but not limited to

those pursuant to RSA 75:1. Rev 601.02

Assessing Services means the making of appraisals, reappraisals, assessments, or providing other services on behalf of
municipal assessing officials for the statutory administration of property valuation and assessment including, but not

limited to those pursuant to RSA 75:1. Rev 601.05

Statistical Revaluation Contract - Town of Exeter, NH
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
October 2023

Page 1

Municipal
Resources



Assessing Standards Board (ASB) means the State of New Hampshire assessing standards board as established
pursuant to RSA 21-J:14-a. Rev 601.06

Assessment means an estimate of the quality, amount, size, features, or worth of real estate which is used as a basis for a
municipalities’ valuation in accordance with statutory requirements including, but not limited to those pursuant to RSA
75:1. Rev 601.07

Base Year means the tax year in which the municipality performed a revaluation of all properties. Rev 601.08

BTLA Reassessment means an order by the State of New Hampshire board of tax and land appeals for a revaluation or
partial update of a municipality’s property assessments. Rev 601.09

Calibration means the process of ensuring the predictive accuracy of the CAMA model(s), through testing, which may
include but not be limited to; determining the variable rates and adjustments from market analysis for land and land
factors, costs and depreciation for a cost model, valuation rates and adjustments for a sales comparison model, and
market rents and capitalization rates for an income model. Rev 601.10

Computer Assisted Mass Appraisal System (CAMA) means a system of appraising property that incorporates
computer-supported tables, automated valuation models and statistical analysis to assist the appraiser in estimating value
for a revaluation, assessment data maintenance and valuation update. Rev 601.11

Contract means any agreement between the municipality and the contractor for making appraisals, reappraisals,
assessments, or for appraisal work on behalf of a municipality with the State of New Hampshire. Rev 601.13

Contractor means the person, firm, company, or corporation with which the municipality has executed a contract or
agreement for assessing services. Rev 601.14

Cyclical Inspection means the process of a systematic measure and listing of all properties within a municipality over a
specified period of time. The term includes “data collection” and “data verification”. Rev 601.15

Cyclical Revaluation means the process of combining a full statistical revaluation of the entire municipality with a
cyclical inspection process. Rev 601.16

Data Collection means the inspection, measuring, or listing of property within a municipality. The term includes data
verification. Rev 601.17

DRA-certified means a level of certification attained by a person as set forth by the ASB in Asb 300 pursuant to RSA
21-J:14-f. Rev 601.20

Executed means to transact, agree to, carry into effect, sign or act upon a contract or agreement to perform assessing
services for a municipality. The term includes “executing™. Rev 601.22

Final Monitoring Report means the DRA’s final letter to the municipality for any revaluation or partial update. Rev
601.23

Full Revaluation means the revaluation of all taxable and nontaxable properties in a municipality, with a complete
measure and listing of all taxable and nontaxable properties to occur at the same time of the establishment of the new
base year, to arrive at full and true value as of April 1. The term includes “full reappraisal” and “full reassessment.” Rev
601.24

Full Statistical Revaluation means the process of a revaluation of all taxable and nontaxable properties in a
municipality, using existing property data, to arrive at full and true value as of April 1. The term includes “statistical
update” and “statistical reassessment”. Rev 601.25

Highest and Best Use means the physically possible, legally permissible, financially feasible, and maximally productive
use of a property, as appraised in accordance with RSA 75:1. Rev 601.26

Improvement means any physical change to either land or to buildings that may affect value. Rev 601.27

Statistical Revaluation Contract - Town of Exeter, NH Page 2
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
October 2023 ' ' '

Municipal
Resources



In-house Work Plan means a written set of goals, objectives, processes, and timelines that the municipality intends to
rely upon to perform revaluations, partial updates, or cyclical inspections. Rev 601.29

Listing means recording a description of the interior, exterior, and attributes of any improvements or the recording of the
description of land features and attributes. The term includes “list”. Rev 601.30

Market Analysis means the study and processes utilized to determine the response of buyers and sellers of real estate, in
a geographic area, to various data elements through the analysis of cost data, income data, and sale transactions in the
performance of mass appraisal. Rev 601.31 -

Market Value means the value of a property that:

(a) Is the most probable price, not the highest, lowest or average price;

(b) Is expressed in terms of money;

(c) Implies a reasonable time for exposure to the market;

(d) Implies that both buyer and seller are informed of the uses to which the property may be put;

(e) Assumes an arm’s length transaction in the open market;

(f) Assumes a willing buyer and a willing seller, with no advantage being taken by either buyer or seller; and,
(g) Recognizes both the present use and the potential use of the property.

The term includes “full and true value”. Rev 601.32

Mass Appraisal means the utilization of standard commonly recognized techniques to value a group of properties as of a
given date, using standard appraisal methods, employing common data and providing for statistical testing. Rev 601.33

Measure means the physical inspection, verification, sketching and recording of the exterior dimensions and attributes of
any improvements made to a property. Rev 601.34

Municipal Assessing Officials means those charged by law with the duty of assessing taxes and being the:
(a) Governing body of a municipality;

(b) Board of assessors or selectmen of a municipality; or

(c) County commissioners of an unincorporated place.

Rev 601.36

Municipality means a city, town or unincorporated place. Rev 601.37

Partial Update means the process of analyzing market sales throughout the entire municipality to identify and
implement needed value changes to the affected areas, or classes of property, to bring those properties to the
municipality’s general level of assessment utilizing the existing base tax year and providing an addendum to the existing
USPAP compliant report. The term includes “partial revaluation.” Rev 601.38

Revaluation means the act of re-estimating the worth of real estate of the entire municipality using standard appraisal
methods, calibration of the CAMA tables and models, establishment of a new base year with a USPAP compliant report,
and providing for statistical testing whether by either:

(a) A full revaluation; or,

(b) A full statistical revaluation.

The term includes “reappraisal,” “reassessment,” and “value anew”. Rev 601.40

Sale Validation means the process of verifying a real estate sale transaction to determine whether the sale was a valid or
an invalid indicator of the market value of the sold property. The term includes “sale verification” and “sale
qualification.” Rev 601.41

Statistical Testing means the use or application of numerical statistics to understand the results of a reappraisal or the
need for a reappraisal. Rev 601.42

Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice (USPAP) means the generally accepted and recognized

standards of appraisal practice printed by The Appraisal Foundation as authorized by Congress as the source of appraisal
standards and appraiser qualifications. Rev 601.44

Statistical Revaluation Contract - Town of Exeter, NH Page 3
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
October 2023 ' ' I

Municipal
Resources



USPAP Compliant Report means an appraisal report based upon the standards established by the ASB pursuant to RSA
21-):14-b ], (c.) Rev 601.45

2. RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY CONTRACTOR

2.1 Contract Submission
The contract, any revised contract, and the list of personnel assigned to work under the contract,
shall be submitted to the DRA for examination and written recommendations of the DRA to be
made to Municipality within 10 working days of receipt by the department. No work shall begin
without first submitting a copy of the executed contract or agreement to the commissioner along with
the names and qualifications of all personnel to be employed under the contract or agreement.
2.2 Assessment of all property
2.2.1  Contractor shall appraise all taxable property (RSA 72:6) within Municipality in a good and
workmanlike manner in accordance with RSA 75:1.
2.2.2  Contractor shall appraise all tax exempt and non-taxable property (RSA 74:2) within the
taxing jurisdiction of Municipality in the same manner as taxable property.
2.2.3  Contractor shall measure, list and verify all sales, except those that have already been
completed, used to determine benchmarks for the revaluation.
2.24  Contractor shall utilize Municipality’s VISION CAMA Systein to assess properties.
2.3 Completion of Work
2.3.1  Contractor shall complete all work and deliver the same in final form to the
municipal assessing officials on or before September 15, 2023.
2.3.2  Contractor shall provide Municipality a list of all products to be delivered and
dates of delivery thereof. The products include:
)] Property record cards in electronic format
) A USPAP Compliant Final Appraisal Report will be provided within 30 days of
submission of the DRA MS-1;
3) The Data Collection Manual,
4) The CAMA System Manual to be provided by Vision Government Solutions; and,
(5) Any other products as deemed necessary by the municipal assessing officials
(as described in Section 3).
2.3.3  The revaluation shall be considered satisfied and in its final form only when:
€)) The informal review of assessments has been completed as described in
Section 3.6;
2) Any required value adjustments are made;
3) The final values are submitted to and accepted by the municipal assessing
officials;
4) All products required by the contract are delivered to Municipality and the
DRA;
(5) The DRA has completed its final monitoring report;
(6) All other terms of the contract have been satisfied.
24 Personnel
24.1  For grading, classifying, appraising and data collection of all property covered by the
contract, Contractor shall only employ personnel who are certified by the DRA, as defined in
the Asb 300 Rules and RSA 21-J:14-f for the level of work they will be performing;
24.2  Contractor shall not compensate, in any way, a municipal official, employee or any
immediate family member of such official or employee in the performance of any work under
Statistical Revaluation Contract - Town of Exeter, NH Page 4
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
October 2023 | . '

Municipal
Resources



243

244

245

24.6

the contract unless previously disclosed and a prior full-time employee of Contractor.

Upon approval of the contract and before the revaluation begins, Contractor shall
provide to the DRA and the municipal assessing officials, a list of the DRA-certified
personnel assigned to work under the contract.

Contractor shall ensure that the DRA-certified assessor supervisor is proficient in the
use and calibration of the CAMA system that will be used to assess the property
specified in Section 2.2. 5o

Contractor shall ensure that the individual(s) assigned to perform data entry are
proficient in the use of Municipality’s CAMA system.

All work shall be overseen and reviewed by a DRA Certified Assessor or Assessor
Supervisor.

2.5 Public Relations

25.1

Contractor and the municipal assessing officials, during the progress of the work,

shall each use their best efforts to promote full cooperation and amiable relations with
taxpayers. All publicity and news releases shall be approved by the municipal assessing
officials before being released to the news media. Contractor, upon request of the
municipal assessing officials, shall provide assistance in conjunction with the

municipal assessing officials to acquaint the public with the mechanics and purpose of the
revaluation.

2.6 Confidentiality

2.6.1

Contractor, municipal assessing officials or municipal employees shall not disclose any
preliminary values to anyone or permit anyone to use or access any data on file during the
course of the revaluation project, except the municipal assessing officials and the
Commissioner of the DRA, or their respective designees, until the values have been submitted
to the municipal assessing officials and made public.

2.7 Compensation and Terms

2.7.1

2.7.2

273

274

275

2.7.6

277

The fees for all contracted services specified in this agreement are incorporated in the fee

schedule of the existing agreement for assessing services between the Town of Exeter and
Municipal Resources, Inc. dated January 1, 2022, and is annually contingent on municipal
funding at Town Meeting.

The cost for the appraisal of utility and special use properties are not included in the cost in
section 2.7.1.

The cost for the preparation and presentation of the defense of values for the revaluation year
are included at the local level as outlined in section 3.8.1; the cost beyond the local level as
outlined in 3.8.2 will be billed at the rate of $125.00 per hour, in accordance with MRI’s
general assessing contract with the Town of Exeter, dated January 1, 2022.

Pursuant to the January 1, 2022 agreement, the Town shall be responsible for postage for the
mailing of callback notices, notification of new values and other mailings associated with this
project. The Town shall also be responsible for printing of property record cards.

The Town shall be responsible for any costs associated with notices placed in newspapers or
other media.

It is understood by both parties that funding for this project is contingent on the appropriation
of funds by the Town.

If as a result of new legislation and/or DRA or ASB rules/guidelines, additional services are

Statistical Revaluation Contract - Town of Exeter, NH Page 5
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc. l l l

October 2023

Municipal
Resources



required, an additional scope of work would need to be negotiated.
3. DETAIL OF SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY CONTRACTOR

3.1 Collection of Sale and Newly Inventoried Property Data
3.1.1  Vacant land parcels and any attributes that may affect the market value shall be listed
accurately. Such attributes may include, but not be limited to: number of acres; road
frontage; neighborhoods; water frontage; water access; views; topography; easements;
deeded restrictions and other factors that might affect the market value.

3.1.2  Principal building(s), and any appurtenant building(s), or other improvements, shall be
accurately measured and listed to account for the specific elements and details of construction
as described in the data collection manual in place at the time of the update. Such elements
and details may include, but not be limited to: quality of construction; age of structure;
depreciation factors; basement area; roofing; exterior cover; flooring; fireplaces; heating &
cooling systems; plumbing; story height; number of bathrooms; number of bedrooms; and,
other features, attributes, or factors that might affect market value.

3.1.3  Contractor shall make an attempt to inspect the property, and if the attempt is unsuccessful,
Contractor will provide a list to Town staff so that a letter may be sent by the Town to the
property owner requesting that the property owner call Contractor’s designee, within a stated
time frame as agreed upon by the municipal assessing officials and Contractor, to arrange for
an interior inspection;

3.1.4  If the municipal assessing officials are not able to arrange for an interior inspection, or
entrance to a building or parcel of land cannot be obtained as detailed in Section 3.1.5
below, Contractor shall:

(a) Estimate the value of the improvements using the best evidence available; and,
b) Annotate the property record card accordingly.

3.1.5  Contractor shall complete interior inspection of properties except:
(a) Vacant or unoccupied structures;
(b) Where attempts for inspection have been made without success and the
owner or occupant has not responded to Contractor or the municipal assessing
officials’ notifications;

(©) Where postings prevent access;

(d) Unsafe structures;

(e) When the owner has refused access to Contractor or designee;

) When inhabitants appear impaired, dangerous or threatening; and,

(g) Any other reason for which the municipal assessing officials agree that the property

is inaccessible.

3.1.6  Contractor shall take a photograph of the sale property and update the record in the CAMA
system,

3.1.7  Contractor shall provide to Municipality a complete copy of the: field data collection card(s);
worksheel(s); and, other document(s) used in the valuation process.

3.1.8  Contractor shall provide progress reports on an agreed upon schedule to the municipal
assessing officials and the DRA.

3.2 Property Record Cards
3.2.1  Contractor shall prepare an individual property record card, for each separate parcel of
property in Municipality arranged to show:

1) The owner’s name, street number, map and lot number or other designation of the
property;
) The owner’s mailing address;
Statistical Revaluation Contract - Town of Exeter, NH Page 6
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
October 2023 ' l '
Municipal

Resources



(3)

@4

&)
(6)
(M
®

9
(10$)

33 Market Analysis

Information necessary to derive and understand:

(a) The land value;

(b) The number of acres of the parcel;

{c¢) The land classification;

(d) The adjustments made to land values;

(e) The value of the improvements on the land,

{f)  The accurate description of all improvements whether affecting market
value or not;

(g) The improvement pricing details; and,

(h) The allowances made for physical, functional and economic depreciation
factors;

The outline sketch of all principal improvements with dimensions with the street

side or waterfront toward the bottom of the diagram;

The base valuation year;

The print date of property record card;

Photograph of the principal building;

History of the property transfer to include:

(a) Date of sale;

(b) Consideration amount;

(¢) Qualification code; and,

(d) Property type noted as either vacant or improved;

A notation area to record any comments pertaining to the property; and,

A notation area to record the history of the property, which may include, but

not be limited to:

(a) Property inspection date;

(b) Individual’s identification number or initials associated with the inspection;

(c) The extent of the inspection;

(d) Reason for the inspection; and,

(e) Any value adjustment(s),

3.3.1 A DRA-certified property assessor supervisor shall conduct the full statistical revaluation
market analysis.

3.3.2 A DRA-certified property assessor assistant, under the guidance of a DRA-certified
property assessor or a DRA-certified property assessor supervisor, may validate or
invalidate sales for the market analysis.

3.3.3  The municipal assessing officials shall provide to Contractor a copy of all property
transfers for a minimum of two (2) years immediately preceding the effective date of the
revaluation.

3.3.4 A market analysis shall be conducted by Contractor using accepted mass appraisal methods in
order to determine land, improvements and any other contributory values or factors including:

)
)]

3)

A review of all property transfers provided by the municipal assessing officials to
Contractor;

A compilation of all unqualified property transfers into a sales list with appropriate
notations for those sales not used in the analysis accompanied by:

(@) The parcel map and lot number;

(b) The disqualification code;

(c) The date of sale; and,

(d) The sale price.

A compilation of all qualified property transfers into a sales list with appropriate
notations tor those sales used in the analysis accompanied by:

(a) The parcel map and lot number;

{b) The date of sale;

(c) The sale price;

Statistical Revaluation Contract - Town of Exeter, NH Page 7
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc. | l '

October 2023

Municipal
Resources



(d) The newly established value;

(e) A photocopy or printout of the property record card for each property
transferred; and.

(D) A photograph of the principal improvements attached thereto;

)] Estimated land values with the documented results, as follows:

(a) Utilizing vacant land sales whenever possible; and,

(b) In the absence of an adequate number of vacant land sales, the land residual
method or other recognized land valuation methodologies shall be used to
assist in the determination of land unit values;

(5) The Indicated land values shall be documented as:

(a) Site;

(b) Front or square foot;

(c) Front acre;

(d) Rear acre units; and/or,

(e) Other appropriate units of comparison;

6) An analysis section to include:

(a) The sale price; and,

(b)  Supporting adjustments made in sufficient detail to be understood by the
municipal assessing officials and taxpayers;

(7 The market analysis used to indicate unit values with the documentation of the
method(s) employed and any special adjustment factors; and,

8) Tax Maps showing the locations of all qualified sales and the delineation of
neighborhoods.

3.3.5 The preliminary market analysis shall:

¢)) Be provided to the municipal assessing officials and the DRA prior to the acceptance
of the new values by the municipal assessing officials;

) Be printed in its final form, and provided to the municipal assessing officials and the
DRA at the completion of the revaluation as part of the USPAP compliant report;
and,

3) Become property of Municipality and the DRA.

3.3.6  Contractor will ensure that a comprehensive review of the newly established values of the
entire Municipality shall be performed by an assessor supervisor to:
n Ensure that all properties are valued at their highest and best use; and,
2 Identify and correct: any mechanical errors; inconsistencies; unusual features or
value influencing factors.

3.3.7  Any supporting documentation supplied, provided or utilized by Contractor in the
process of compiling the market analysis, such as but not limited to: sales verification
sheets; rental/expense statements and questionnaires; Contractor cost estimates; sales
listing sheets; final review notes; etc., shall be relinquished to and become property of
Municipality.

34 Approaches to Value
34.1  The valuation of property for the revaluation shall be completed by utilizing recognized
approaches to value, which may include, but not be limited to:
34.2 Cost Approach:
1) The cost approach, when utilized, shall be implemented by calibrating and applying
land valuation tables, building valuation tables and unit costs as follows:
(a) Investigate, with documented analysis, land values for residential,
commercial, industrial and any other special use properties in the area;
(b) Document the land valuation tables and unit costs by including statistical
testing to compare the calculated preliminary land value to the sale properties
to ensure accuracy before the land valuation tables and unit costs are

implemented;
Statistical Revaluation Contract - Town of Exeter, NH Page 8
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
October 2023 ' l '

Municipal
Resources



(©)

(d)
(e)

Document the development of the units of comparison that shall be used

for the base land prices, which may include, but not limited to: site; front

foot; square foot; front acre; rear acre; and, other appropriate units of
comparison;

Document site specific characteristic land adjustments, which may include, but
not be limited to: topography; view; size; location; and, access; and,
Document the calibration of land tables and models.

2) In developing building cost tables, Contractor shall provide the following:

(a)
(b)

)

@

Investigate, with documented analysis, the building costs of residential,
commercial, industrial and any other special use properties in the area;
Deocument the testing of Contractor’s building valuation tables and
unit costs by comparing the calculated preliminary building value to the sale
properties, for which the building costs are known, to ensure accuracy before
the building valuation tables and unit costs are implemented;
The building cost tables shall consist of unit prices based upon relevant factors,
which may include, but not be limited to: specifications for various types of
improvements; the quality of construction; the building customs and practices
in Municipality; various story heights and square foot areas adequate for the
valuation of all types of buildings and other improvements to the land; tables
for additions and deductions for variations from the base cost improvement
specifications; and, tables for depreciation based upon age and condition of the
improvements.
Document the calibration of all building cost tables and models.

3.4.3  Income Approach:
4] The income approach, when utilized, shall be implemented by calibrating and
applying valuation models as follows:

(a)

(b)
(©)

(d)

(e)

Investigate and qualify, with documented analysis, market data, which may
include but not be limited to: rental income; expenses; vacancy; and,
capitalization rates for: residential, commercial, industrial and any other
special use property;

Describe property specific characteristics;

Document statistical testing for the income valuation models to known sales
of similar properties;

Create valuation. models consisting of market data based upon:

(i) Defined descriptions and specifications based upon property type; and,
(ii) Quality and size of the improvements; and,

Document the calibration of all income approach valuation tables and models.

344  Market-Sales Comparison Approach:
) The market-sales comparison approach, when utilized, shall be implemented by
calibrating and applying valuation models as follows:

(a)

(b)
(c)

(d
(e)
(3]

Contractor shall qualify, analyze, and use sales as direct units of comparison

in the valuation of residential, commercial, industrial and any other special use
properties;

Investigate with decumented analysis comparable sales;

Document the adjustments for specifics, which may include, but not be

limited to: location; time; size; features; and, condition;

Document how the adjustments were derived;

Document final value reconciliation; and,
Document calibration of all sales comparison tables and models.

3.4.5 In the utilization of the appraisal approaches to valuation, Contractor shall make and
document adjustments made to properties for depreciation factors, which may include,
but not be limited to: physical; functional; and, economic conditions.

Statistical Revaluation Contract - Town of Exeter, NI’I Page 9

Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
October 2023

Municipal
Resources



3.5 Utility Properties

35.1

Assessment of Utility properties are not. part of the work performed under this revaluation
contract.

3.6 Value Notification and Informal Revieys

3.6.1

3.6.2

363

3.64

3.6.5

3.6.6

3.6.7

3.6.8

Contractor shall provide to the municipal assessing officials:

) A list of the newly established values for review;

) A preliminary value analysis with-a copy delivered to the DRA for review; and,
3 The informal review schedule in advance.

Contractor, shall mail, first class, to all property owners, the notification of the newly
established value of their property by sending to the property owner a letter to the owner
stating the newly established value of their property and whether Contractor has either:

(a) Published a list of all property owners containing the newly established
valuations for all properties within Municipality in an identified newspaper of
general circulation for the entire Municipality; or,

(b) Posted in two (2) identified public places within Municipality a list of all
property owners and the newly established values of the entire Municipality.

The notification of newly established values shall contain the details of the informal
review process, instructions on scheduling an informal review; and the time frame in
which informal reviews shall be scheduled.

The notification of newly established values shall contain instructions in regard to the appeal
process for abatements pursuant to RSA 76:16, RSA 76:16-a and RSA 76:17.

After mailing or posting of the notification of newly established values, Contractor shall
ensure that an informal review of the newly established property values is provided to all
property owners who may, within the time prescribed by the contract, request such a review.

Not withstanding Section 2.6 of this contract (Confidentiality), Contractor shall make
available to all property owners the-property record card and market analysis related to their
newly established property value(s).

Contractor, shall notify, by first class mail, all property owners addressed during the informal
reviews and indicate whether or not a change in value resulted and the amount thereof.

All documentation utilized or obtained during the informal review process shall be
relinquished to the municipal assessing officials.

3.7 Appraisal Reporting and Appraisal Manuals

3.7.1  Contractor shall provide a USPAP compliant appraisal report pursuant to RSA 21-J:14-
b,1,(c): The report shall comply with the most recent edition of the USPAP Standard 6. The
report shall contain, at a minimum, the following:
(D A letter of transmittal to include a signed and dated certification statement;
2) Sections detailing:
(a) The scope of work;
(b) The development of values;
(c) Time trending analysis;
(d) Land and neighborhood data;
(e) Improved property data;
(f)  Statistical testing, analysis, and quality control; and,
(g) The development of approaches to value used in the revaluation of
properties.
3) Appendices which may include, but not be limited to:
(a) Work plan;
(b) Neighborhood maps;
Statistical Revaluation Contract - Town of Exeter, NH Page 10
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc.
October 2023 ' ' I

Municipal
Resources



: "}t-n.ﬁ%-ﬂ::;

(¢) Names and levels of DRA-certified individuals authoring or assisting with
the development of the USPAP complmnt report;

(@) . CAMA system codes;

(e) Identification and description of zoning districts;

(f)  Qualified and unqualified sale codes; and,

(g) Other useful definitions or information.

4) Instructions; or as a separate document, adequate instructions for the municipal

assessing officials to;

(a) Understand thezzva‘luatlon methodolognes employed;

(b) Understand the market and neighborhood adjustments; and,

(c) Understand the conclusions of the appraisal report.

3.7.2  Contractor shall provide a USPAP compliant report to the municipal assessing
officials, to be retained by the municipal assessing officials until the next revaluation and
a copy to the DRA.

3.7.3  Contractor shall provide a USPAP compliant report to the municipal assessing officials for
any special use properties or utilities included in Section 3.5, and a copy to the DRA.

3.7.4  Contractor shall proyidé a data collection manual, to be included within the USPAP report, or
as a separate document, which may include but not be limited to:

(D A description of building characteristics; extra features; outbuildings; site
improvements; site characteristics; road frontage; water frontage; water access;
topography; and view;

) A glossary and description of all codes used within the data collection and on
property record cards;

3) A description of all grading factors utilized, which may include, but may not be
limited to: condition factors; quality; depreciation; amenity values; and other
factors or conditions; and, .

4) A glossary and description of the coding used for visitation history.

3.7.5  Contractor shall ensure that the municipal .assessing officials have:
(1) A technical CAMA manual detailing the CAMA system utilized; and,
2) Been provided training in the proper use of the CAMA system.

3.8 Defense of Values
3.8.1 Contractor shall, after the final property tax bills have been mailed by Municipality,
support and defend the values that were established by Contractor for the year of the
revaluation as follows:
(1) Atno additional costs to the Municipality, property tax abatement requests that are
timely filed with Municipality pursuant to RSA 76:16 shall have:
a. A review, by either a DRA-certified property assessor or a DRA-certified
property assessor; and,
b. The Contractor’s written recommendation provided to the municipal
assessmg ofhces which an abatement request had been received.

382 Atan addmonal cost to ‘vluulelpdhty, Contructor shall provnde a qualified representative for
the defense of projserty tax abatement appeals that are timely filed with the Board of Tax and
Land Appeals (BTLA) or Supenor Court pursuam to RSA 76:16-a and RSA 76:17.

3.8.3  Depending upon l.he complexxty of lhe propcrty being appealed, the services of an expert in
valuation or sofiware may be required. The Town agrees to authorize use of these resources
and to pay directly all cosis for their services as may be incurred. MR1 shall work to keep
these costs as low as po%:ble . .

384  All documentation uiilized or obtained durmg the defense of assessed value process shall be
relinquished to Mumcnpa..lnty .

Statistical Revaluation Contract - Town of Exeter, NIi . Page 11
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc. I .
October 2023 o l I I

Municipal
Resources



4. RESPONSIBILITIES OF MUNICIPALITY

4.1

4.2

43

44

4.5

4.6

5. INDEMNIFICATIONS AND INSURANCE .. ... i+

5.1

52

5.3

5.4

5.5

The municipal assessing officials shall identify ;O.Contractor. in writing, which properties
within the taxing jurisdiction are exempt from taxation.

The municipal assessing officiais shall furnish to.Contractor information such as but not be

limited to: the current ownership information of all property; the physical location of all

property; property address changes within Municipality; all property transfer information; a set of
current tax maps; zoning maps; plans; building permits: subdivisions; boundary line adjustments and
mergers; and, other information as specified by Contractor for the services being provided.

The municipal assessing officials shall keep. Contractor inforined of all sales of property that occur
during the progress of. the revaluation.. . ...
The municipal assessing ofﬁcnals shall make corrections to tax maps as of April 1 of the

revaluation year where lots have been subdwndcd or appomoned and notify Contractor of all
ownership and name and address changc§

If requested, suitable office space and equnpment mclude remote access to the Town’s CAMA system,
as specified by Contractor, for the use of Lontrac.ton 5 personnel in the performance of the appraisal
work shall be provided. v .

The Town shall be responsibie for lposté.gc for the mailing of callback notices, notification of new
values and other mailings associated with this project. The Town shall also be responsible for printing
of property record cards. .. . . .. .

PRI AR

Contractor agrees to defend and indemnify M’uniégpélity, with which it is contracting, against claims for
bodily injury, death and property damage which arises in the course of Contractor's performance of

the contract and-with respect to which Municipality; with which-it is contracting, shall be free from
negligence on the part of itself; its employees and agents.

Contractor shall not be responsible for consequential or compensatory damages arising from the late
performance or non-performance of the agreement caused by circumstances, which are beyond
Contractor's reasonable control.

Contractor shall maintain public liability insurance, automobile liability insurance and

workmen's compensation insurance unless Contractor is not required to do so by New Hampshire state

law or as otherwise agreed upon. -

5.3.1 . The public liability insurance shall-be in the forin of commercial general liability with
the inclusion of contractua! liability coverage and:shall provide limits of $1,000,000 each
person and $1,000,000 each occurrence for bodily ipjury liability, and $1,000,000 each
occurrence for property damage liability; and,

5.3.2  The automobile liébility;ins-\;rahcé .sl‘gal;lv.-be‘-dn‘&he fohﬁ of comprehensive automobile
liability and shall provide limits of $1,000,000 each person and $1,000,000 each
occurrence for bodily injury habll'tv

Prior to stamng the revaluation, Contractor sha!l prov: ide certificates of insurance by a State of
NH licensed insurer confirming the required insurance coverage for Municipality with which the
appraisal Contractor is contracting. :

Contractor shall provide Municipality and the DRA a ten (10) day advance written notice of the
cancellation or material change in the required jnsurance coverage.

Statistical Revaluation Contract - Town of Exeter, NH Page 12
Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc. : ' l l '

October 2023

~ Municipal
R . Resources



[T L ¥ « 4ﬂ SN TP IV . v T o
. Lo ey -s:-.";l,fjw‘ gz,;:.ixﬁ, SRR ) :
X , .

6. ESTIMATED SIZE OF REVALUATION
6.1 It is agreed between the parties that the entire revaluation consists of an estimate of 6640 parcels as
defined by RSA 75:9. In the event that the number of parcels should exceed this estimate Contractor
shall be entitled to additional compenqahon of $0 (zero) for each parcel that exceeds the original
estimate. Ca
7. ADDENDUMS, AMENDMENTS AND, APP%NQ‘) XES.
' ,ll. e
71 Addendums, amendments and appendixes pertaining to this contract may be added only by
separate instryment.in,writing and shall meet all requirements.of Section 2.
8. SIGNATURE PAGE - .. :
By signing the contract, Contractor attcsus that pursuant to RSA 21-.l l 1 and Rev 602.01(c) & (d):
n The contract, any revised contract,-and the names and DRA-certified level of all personnel to be
employed under the contract:has been first submitted to the DRA for examination; and,
) No appraisal work shall begin until a copy of this executed contract, and the names and DRA-certified
level of all personnel to be cmployed under this contract, has been submitted to the DRA.
A
Date:
In the Presenceof: . .. ., . . e Municipality of*

Witness Signature

... By Authorized Municipal Assessing Officials or Agent:

In the Presence of: . By Contractor:

Witness Signature _ R Principal/CFO

Statistical Revaluation Contract - Town of Excter, NH Page 13

Prepared by Municipal Resources, Inc. :

October 2023 ' ' l

Municipal
Resources



-3

Riverwoods Tax Agreements




LIZABETH M. MACDONALD

JOHN [. RATIGAN
: A. POULOS
DEROSIER
L. BOLDT

DDY SOMERS
DOUGLAS M. MANSFIELD

Lawyers

g Mé(‘d-éa/ e (é{/;/éw-zﬁ

CELEBRATING OVER 35 YEARS OF SERVICE TO OUR CLIENTS

":L\[\:T'H HER D. HAWKINS
ELAINA L. HOEPPNER
WILLIAM K. WARREN
October 12, 2023 BRIANA L. MATUSZKO

RETIRED
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL (rdean(@exeternh.gov) and FIRST-CLASS MAIL i
CHARLES F. TUCKE
ROBERT D. CIANDELLA
NICHOLAS R. AESCHLIMAN

Russ Dean, Town Manager
Town of Exeter

10 Front Street

Exeter, NH 03833

Re: PILOT Agreement with RiverWoods

Dear Russ:

Enclosed herewith is a draft PILOT agreement for the 2023 tax year incorporating the
three RiverWoods campuses, being The Woods, The Ridge and The Boulders. In accordance
with the review process from prior years, I believe the Select Board will review this proposed
agreement at their next meeting and then contact us with any questions or comments, without
requiring attendance by RiverWoods representatives. If this is not the case, please let me know.

Thank you for your anticipated attention to this matter. I look forward to hearing
from you and will be happy to answer any questions that come up.

Sincerely,

DONAHUE, TUCKER & CIANDELLA, PLLC

Sharon Cuddy Somers
ssomers@dtclawyers.com

Enclosure

oe: Justine Vogel, Chief Executive Officer
Kimberly Gaskell, Executive Director
President

4856-9387-0726, v. 1
DONAHUE, TUCKER & CIANDELLA, PLLC
16 Acadia Lane, PO. Box 630, Exeter, NH 03833
111 Maplewood Avenue, Suite D, Portsmouth, NH 03801
Towle House, Unit 2, 164 NH Route 25, Meredith, NH 03253

1-800-566-0506 83 Clinton Street, Concord, NH 03301 www.dtclawyers.com



(The Woods, The Ridge, The Boulders)

AGREEMENT

NOW COMES the Town of Exeter, by and through its Select Board (hereinafter
“Town”) and The RiverWoods Company, at Exeter, New Hampshire (formerly Life Care

Services of New Hampshire Inc.), d/b/a RiverWoods at Exeter (hereinafter “RiverWoods”), and

agree as follows:

1. By December 1, 2023, RiverWoods will pay to the Town real estate taxes for land
and buildings owned by RiverWoods and located at the three campuses known as
The Woods, The Ridge and The Boulders which, collectively comprise The
RiverWoods Company, at Exeter, New Hampshire (“the Land and Buildings”).

2. The real estate taxes will be calculated by multiplying the tax rate times the
assessed value of the Land and Buildings owned by RiverWoods as follows:

A.

the residential units will pay the full tax rate (state, municipal, county, and
school);

the buildings for health care residents will not pay any tax (state,
municipal, county, or school);

the remainder of Land and Buildings, including the land used for the final
calculation of density under the land use ordinance of the Town of Exeter
and outbuildings, will pay the full tax rate (state, municipal, county, and
school); and

the land not needed for the final calculation of density under the land use
ordinance of the Town of Exeter, which is in current use, will pay taxes at
the full state, municipal, county, and school rate for current use property.

3. The parties to this Agreement recognize that those portions of the development
that support both the buildings for health care residents and the residential units will be taxed on

a pro rata basis.

4, This Agreement on principle shall not preclude either party from questioning the
precise percentage amounts allocated to the taxable and nontaxable portions, nor the assessed
value of the taxable portions of the land and buildings.



IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the parties hereto have entered into this Agreement this

day of

, 2023.

Witness

TOWN OF EXETER

Witness

By:

Niko Papakonstantis, Chair

: Molly Cowan, Vice Chair

Witness

: Julie D. Gilman, Clerk

Witness

: Nancy Belanger, Select Board Member

Witness

By:

Daniel Chartrand, Select Board Member



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have entered into this Agreement this

day of , 2023,
THE RIVERWOODS COMPANY,
AT EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Witness By: Kimberly Gaskell, Executive Director

4885-1714-1126, v. 3



Committees Discussion




Tax Abatements, Veterans Credits & Exemptions



S

pproval

its & A

rmi

Pe




TOWN OF EXETER

Planning and Building Department
10 FRONT STREET » EXETER, NH » 03833-3792 » (603) 778-0591 FAX 772-4709
www.exeternh.qov

Date: October 5, 2023

To: Russ Dean, Town Manager

From: Doug Eastman, Building Inspector/Chairman E911

Re: E 911 Recommendations for Street Names & Street Addressing

I'm writing this memorandum after the E911 Committee voted to recommend a new street name
and the renaming of an existing street associated with the development of the Rose Farm
subdivision. The Committee has also recommended renumbering the properties on Boulder
Brook Drive to bring them into compliance with the Town Ordinance. These recommendation
actions are outlined below with a brief description of why the decision was made. | have enclosed
maps which illustrate the recommendations.

Recommendation # 1: To name the new proposed road in the Rose Farm subdivision
“Sunflower Lane” and to number dwellings in accordance with Chapter 14 of the Town
Ordinance, as depicted on the attached map dated 7/13/22.

Analysis: This is not a name change but a new name for a road that is under construction.
Sunflower Lane was proposed by the developer that owns the land and it meets the ordinance
criteria.

Recommendation # 2: Change the name of “Oak Street Ext.” to Oak Street, therefore
making it a continuation of the existing Oak Street, and to continue to Sunflower Lane, as
depicted on the attached map dated 7/13/22; and to renumber dwellings in accordance with
Chapter 14 of the Town Ordinance.

Analysis: This recommendation was also proposed by the developer and meets the ordinance
criteria. The non-compliant street addressing on Oak Street Ext., as well as it being a “duplicate”
and/or “similar-sounding” name, was originally called out in the NH-DESC audit, and this
proposed change will correct that.

In addition, the existing Wadleigh Street will be continued (from its intersection with Forest Street)
into the Rose Farm subdivision, as depicted on the attached map, and numbered in accordance
with Chapter 14 of the Town Ordinance. No action is required from the Select Board for the
continuation of an existing road.

Recommendation # 3: To renumber the properties on “Boulder Brook Drive” in
accordance with Chapter 14 of the Town Ordinance; and to maintain the current numerical
unit address of the multi-family condominium complexes, as depicted on the attached map
dated 10/3/23.




Analysis: The non-compliant street addressing on Boulder Brook Drive was originally called out
in the NH-DESC audit, and this proposed change will correct that. More recently, an incident had
occurred which resulted in difficulty finding the appropriate location for responding to a fire call.
The E911 Committee discussed this issue at their February 7" and March 7" ,2023 meetings.
Notice of the proposed change was provided to all property owners (via mail) with an invitation to
attend the September 5", 2023 E911 meeting to share their thoughts and concerns with the
Committee. The Committee subsequently voted unanimously to move the recommendation
forward to the Select Board.

Summary:

The E911 Committee is advisory and only the Select Board can approve new street names and
change street names. In accordance with Chapter 14, the Select Board will have to hold a public
hearing on the recommendations prior to taking any action. The Building Department will provide
the required certified notification to all property owners with the date and time of the public hearing
once it has been scheduled. An E911 Committee representative will be present at the hearing to
answer any questions.

. 1}:.,“?. .



3
@
£
H
H
i
3

:
3
g
i
g
]

Hanel

717500

Ok St

2 o
¥ WISC Projetsd /175

T VICINITY PLAN S

RECREATION AREA |
COMSERVATION

“Ax waz 48 07§
WE

Az
EAST COAST VENTLRES NG (6,31 ACRES)
0 NTTGRATED REA ™ RESURCES

32

NOTES.

TME DARCELS ARE BN ON S MAP 34 A5 LOTS 5 6 A T AND waP 53

ou a0
ACRD B 3040 e W
3 23-8598 (803} 425-8398

(6a3) 425-8535

3 THE PURPDSE DF IS PL
ETER F0SE

570 SHGW Tt PRCPOSED EOAD NAMES ASSOCIATES M THE 40RO
e SUBmnsIon SOR SEvEw OF DIE Tow OF X

owm

T NAMES Wi 9F DEVCNATED N ACCORDANCE W™= CHAPTER

5 PROPDSED OAC SIRELT (FORUERLY £NOW 45 Oax <1 REET
NORTHERLY T LOWER LANE THEN

™ Hos SEE RCRD (B & PG
& SRoRCSED
FEXETES

e Towe

LOWER LANE ML BE USED FOR MEACENCY
T EVENT THAT PROPOSED WADKEH 15 INPASSABLE

oF OREST STREEI, NORTHER
oW AREA 4 B THE HOA AND

Oy OF PROPOSED O STHECY. ROM THE INTERSE|
o ~EAE 08 ACCESS TC R

v OF FOREST §
VEwAY FOA ACCESS

NOR THER
QT+ 87 T

ThE SECION 0 SRONOSED g SREET riou e ekt
fo 45 A HARED D

10 FCAEAION

ROU T NTERSECTION OF PAGPOSED ADLEGH §
s

u_su g et TChoS SACORDD W
USE RESTRICNONS

v
SCRD (8% & PG PENDING) FOR WANTENANCE ACH

t a7 aRET
THE PROPOSED PUBLIC ROADWAY SHOWN AS WADLEIGH STHE :
+ N TME EVENT TME SELECT ROARD ACCEPTS ™ME PROPOSED PUBLIC ROADWAY

SECREATION 4/
AREA ACCESS

“HENDERSON-SWASEY - d
TOWN FOREST* e JCrb § TERESA TOOMES

TR, ey 0389

~
N TN

s >
eheguis 3

/ el
i, viom
/i < NORs g,
TR e IO
e

\\
AECREATION AREA 2
N

DRAINAGE EASEMENT 1

L '-P-- — —
~ -

X

Pﬂ ot |

s

TaTOn | FaseuEn” ol

'y
v

= PROPOSED OAK STREET

e

PROPOSED OAK STREET ",

a4 Gax SIRECT EXTENSION o

4 PRVATT RNE SEL MOTE S

SEE PCRD K p41F P FII9
o0 ANt OF WA )

Seacoas! Dwision

i Engreers 70 Commerce Wap. Swie 107

Siructural Eaqeeers e 03807
et ngrewts Phone (603} 431 -1223

tord Surverons
Langscope Archibects | Fou (803) 43009
Scantiats | www timaran com

e ) ol

]
AN VAN
AALROAD CORFORATION
o

iGN EASCUENTH

e aose tanm
NGTON STREET =1
210

AX MAP 54 LOTS 5.6 & 7 & TAX MAP
PROPOSED ROAD NAME SKETCH
EXETER ROSE FARM SUBDIVISION

o FOREST STREET & OAK STREET EXTENSION
EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE, COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM
| OWNED BY
EXETER ROSE FARM, LLC
PREPARED FOR
EXETER ROSE FARM, LLC

PLANNING BOARD CASE #17-27 I

Toa] Bux | *8

47175.00 <‘-'

ICC lcaces| 4717500 ROAD WAMLS

| SCALE: 1=100° JULY 13, 2022 |




Boulder Brook Proposed Renumbering 10[3 |23

Existing:14
Proposed: 9

Existing: 8
Proposed: 25

Existing: 11
Proposed: 18 with unit numbers
remaining the same

(1-b)

Existing: No central number,
there is and address for each unit
Proposed: 41 with unit numbers
remaining the same (1-8)




nce

Corresponde




October 8, 2023

Mr. Russell Dean
Town Manager
10 Front Street
Exeter, NH 03833

Dear Mr. Dean,

Yesterday, Exeter hosted its annual Powderkeg Beer & Chili Festival. In spite of the
inclement weather, it appeared to be a great success.

With an attendance rate of 2,000 people, it is promoted as the largest beer festival in
New England. Something to be proud of, to be sure.

We are the residents who live closest to Swasey Parkway. Over the years, we have

witnessed increased congestion in our neighborhood as event goers seek to park as

close to the event as possible. This has resulted in occasional mishaps— blocked fire
hydrants, blocked driveways, even some minor property damage.

More concerning, however, is the substantial lack of ingress and egress on Park
Street. Event goers park on both sides of the street the entire length of the road. This
effectively reduces the width of the road to one-third its normal size. In fact, if two
vehicles enter the road from opposite ends, only one has clearance. This is evidenced
by the photo, taken yesterday, which is attached on the following page.

The reality is that some of our residents have significant health concerns which warrant
frequent emergency care. In fact, Emergency Medical Services were called to a
residence just before the festival began. We are concerned about increasing
congestion from Swasey Parkway events that would impede access to our homes for
Emergency Medical and Fire Services.

Therefore, we are asking the Town to consider updating parking regulations for town
events at Swasey Parkway. We would like to have parking limited to ONE side of the
street only in our neighborhood. This includes Park, Cass, Summer, Dewey, Green and
Salem Streets.

Thank you for your consideration and support in keeping our neighborhood and our
residents safe.

Respectfully submitted,

ot Yy 25 Cass Sf’r///{’
%o%c/ﬁ/ R chorls 25~ (o< StHteet

Llenme . N, /,Dau:é' N Vare Bire. s

/i1 Mow<e d Care Sheed~



A&/Ih Twdoe. 22 Pt P

wa 08:&9-{/ A7 fort st
_4‘(&" Lt~ o F PM(L(, OF.
_Z@mmﬂ%éé&__@_%oj/f,
e [P 7 dewdy <t
&by PrT_ 7 Nseds s ST
a2 ld £ Wbm/z's b PO\\/"C’ St
, /QM( 0 5 QuuelLt =t
S DQ\WV\US_\_\
J&J@myz RIS — 294 wakeP S
A :,.100&\& &Mom A &reon Street
2| breop STwel
A.((/»L)f [ D-ewey 54@60&'
mﬂ/uz,,//ﬂ P ¢ /€ (Vo5 'S4
Wi e Af’/%‘éw (S Epcgn ST
i |29, ¥ Cws SF
Chvishnx *Pag 1€ (acs SE
Uannua Macknd Goe & (ass Sl
el A Y Lo (et
ﬂovx’a\{bmmov/f\ch 5 (7)’{ 4-}
[y Z{/‘\\L D \/\/
D17 o PP L A //WJ&
“ broe el W\ (oaes Sheeo
Tanlre L Nevers % coss 51

*%;m l?f/
VET e M(ot&l—'\Z\AM 2 (GREEN =T

Y _Gereen SE.

WNodere 2ol LR -
,M\./\/ ' ‘7 C:’VQQA S+
LHET NG 4 (Q‘Mufﬁﬂ%&/ 14 Greeny of
/‘ A A oy o &)

s (as S7




KAMO\@ Tazawa 22 Cag St.. hxerﬁ MH 538327

Liod oSl o P~ J] (4K Frle A 560
Teame O'Sullivan \) 19 Loaust five, EXedes 03333
XM Warf— 72X Cade s
Malerlss Weorval s, 1z Pack 5
Afzb{lma KiwKunas 15 (ass St
Cruell Svsan Scannefl /[l CAss
e i A,
oM Roxe 0 CAsS SR
WAf— [0 CheS ST
o 0 /g Ase y Y (ass 5-7(/‘<<7/
7/l 7. AL 8&%{’&' §t7
Mqlco/n gmné){*" ( Sa (v S+
gtwfw.&(Mb&, /& _&MW#
Qepo e~ 2] . B Sumuec Sl
?:(\Cv, — B Surune Q7~
h)b\/\/\e,uL/‘ 30 _Whter St £ xfor
Sl Worsie s{ Z>/§(f/¢
NI s CAV&&T\/ ~ 28 acls S
@?Qd/\ g, N0 Yolgin AS( &Y
A 2/ loetr St
A oloan X V\;wvu—'\ / lf& CaY_L-s—O ST
}U.\JM e : 5 Gwen Sf

/¥ Summev S

'\’\ M\:\S g‘)/\m@% ‘ Qm\w g‘\-







